UNITED
NATIONS A

Di str.
GENERAL

XN
\\/‘“ 1}\} General Assembly

=<

A/ CN. 9/ SR. 600
3 April 1997

ORI G NAL: ENGLI SH

UNI TED NATI ONS COWM SSI ON ON | NTERNATI ONAL TRADE LAW
Twenty-ni nth session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 600t h MEETI NG
Hel d at Headquarters, New York,
on Friday, 7 June 1996, at 3 p.m

Chai r man; Ms. PIAGE de VANGCSSI (Argentina)

CONTENTS

ELECTRONI C DATA | NTERCHANGE: DRAFT MODEL LAW POSSI BLE FUTURE WORK ( conti nued)

This record is subject to correction

Corrections should be subnmitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menmorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Chief, Oficial Records Editing Section, Ofice of Conference and Support
Services, room DC2-794, 2 United Nations Pl aza.

Any corrections to the records of the meetings of this session will be
consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly after the end of
t he session.

96- 80779 (E) /...



A/ CN. 9/ SR 600
Engl i sh
Page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.20 p.m

ELECTRONI C DATA | NTERCHANGE: DRAFT MODEL LAW PGOSSI BLE FUTURE WORK ( conti nued)
(A/50/17; A/ CN 9/421; A CN. 9/ XXI X/ CRP. 3)

1. M. BURVAN (United States of America) said that the occasion of the

600t h nmeeting of UNCI TRAL was a source of pride to all del egations since the
Conmi ssi on had contributed substantially to the harnonization of |ega

procedures between nations with different |egal systens and fromdifferent parts
of the world. It was widely recognized that over the years UNCH TRAL had
achieved its objectives while remaining non-politicized, technically focused and
producti ve.

2. M. RENGER (CGernmany) said it was essential at the current session that the
Conmi ssion should not only adopt the draft Mdel Law on Legal Aspects of

El ectronic Data Interchange (EDI) and Rel ated Means of Communication but al so
take a definitive decision concerning the Guide to Enactnent. Changes woul d
necessarily have to be nade in the draft Guide as a result of the changes made
to the text of the Mbdel Law. In that connection, he urged del egations to
submt any outstanding comments to the secretariat so that they could be

i ncorporated into the Guide for publication

3. M. VARSO (Sl ovakia) noted that while there was a consensus on the need to
i ssue the Mddel Law and the CGuide at the sanme tine, there was no consensus
concerning the adoption of the Guide by the Comrission. A conprom se whereby

t he Model Law woul d be published on behal f of the Comm ssion while the Gui de was
prepared by the secretariat and i ssued with the authorization of the Conm ssion
m ght acconmopbdate the concerns of the Singaporean and other |ike-m nded

del egati ons.

4. Ms. ALLEN (United Kingdom) said her del egation endorsed the view that the
Model Law and the CGui de should both be adopted at the current session of the
Conmmi ssion. She had great faith in the secretariat's ability to come up with a
sati sfactory Cui de.

5. M. GOH (Singapore) said that in view of the desire of nmany delegations to
have the Mddel Law and CGui de published at the same tinme and as early as
possi bl e, his del egati on woul d have no objection to the conprom se procedure
suggested by the representative of Slovakia.

6. M. ZHANG Yuding (China) said that while his del egati on was not opposed to
t he conprom se sol uti on suggested by the representative of Slovakia, it stil
felt that since the GQuide in its entirety had not been di scussed by the

Conmmi ssion, it was not appropriate to publish it in the name of the Conm ssion

7. M. SORIEUL (International Trade Law Branch) said it was obvious that, if a
si ngl e docunent contained both the Mbdel Law as adopted by the Comm ssion and a
gui de published by the Conm ssion secretariat and aut horized by the Conm ssion
it would be difficult for nost readers to distinguish between the authority of
the Mbdel Law and that of the Guide. Further difficulties would arise should

t he Conmi ssion be unable to publish the Guide in the same docunent as the Mbde

/...



A/ CN. 9/ SR 600
Engl i sh
Page 3

Law. He would have to consult the rules governing United Nations publications,
for the issue was certainly a conpl ex one.

8. M. BURMAN (United States of America) suggested deferring final action on
the @Guide until the secretariat had had an opportunity to reviewthe matter in
the Iight of the applicable United Nations procedure. He hoped that those

del egati ons which were not wholly in agreement with the substantial majority
that favoured authorizing the secretariat to publish the Guide mght also be
given some time to reconsider their positions. However, any solution that
permtted the Guide to be published separately fromthe Mdel Law because of the
different | egal status of the two docunents woul d be unaccept abl e.

9. M. ABASCAL (Mexico) agreed with the statenment nade by the representative
of the United States of America.

10. The CHAIRMAN said that action on publication of the Guide would be
deferred. She then invited the Conm ssion to consider further revisions to the
provi sions of the Mdel Law.

Article "x"

11. Ms. BGOSS (United States of Anerica) introduced her del egation's proposed
anendnments to paragraph 3 of article "x" as anmended by the United Ki ngdom
(A/CN. 9/ XXI XI CRP. 3). Paragraph 3 was intended to deal with situations where
transfers of rights had been acconplished in the past by data nessages and a
deci si on had been made to convert to paper. Paragraph 3 (a) was intended to
protect the holder of a right acquired by neans of a data nessage agai nst
involuntarily losing that right by the i ssuance of a paper docunent while
paragraph 3 (b) gave full warning to further transferees of that paper docunent
t hat al t hough data nessages had been used in the past, they could no | onger be
used. The |ast sentence was based on the original version of article "
par agraph 3.

X,

12. Ms. REMSU (Qbserver for Canada), noting that the Mdel Law sought to open
the door to the use of electronic technology, said that paragraph 3 (b) neant
t hat once paper was adopted instead of electronic technol ogy, parties who took
i nterest in goods subsequent to the conversion fromelectronic technology to
paper were barred fromusing such technol ogy even though it m ght be

EDI - capabl e. 1 ndeed, paragraph 3 (b) seemed not only to contradict the overal
pur pose of the Mddel Law by not facilitating the use of technology but also to
let the State, rather than the parties shape the practice.

13. M. LLOYD (Australia) said that his del egation had sonme reservations about
paragraph 3 (b) and would prefer to delete it. |If the goal of the provision was
to stop reversion from paper docunents to el ectronic nmessages, it woul d not
work; requiring that a statement should be made in a docunent was not the sane
as prohibiting such a reversion. Furthernore, if a nmistake was made in a bil

of lading and an el ectroni c nessage was replaced by a paper docunent but, either
m st akenly or inadvertently, the statenment required in paragraph 3 (b) was not

i ncluded, that bill of |ading would be considered invalid and the effect would
be to penalize a bona fide recipient of a paper bill of |ading, who would have



A/ CN. 9/ SR 600
Engl i sh
Page 4

to seek recourse under donestic law. The penalty should be targeted towards the
i ssuer of the paper bill of |ading.

14. Ms. BGOSS (United States of Anerica), replying to the observer for Canada,
said that paragraph 3 (b) was not intended to di senmpower the parties from
surrendering a paper docunent at a |ater stage and issuing data nessages

i nstead. Her delegation's anmendnments were intended to nake it clear that so

| ong as a paper docunent was outstandi ng, data nessages could not be used. To
that end, the words "in place of the paper docunment” could be changed to "while
such paper document is outstanding”. That would constitute a warning to the

i ssuer of the paper document and any subsequent holders that if there was a
reversion to data nessages, the two could not exist simultaneously, and that the
paper docunent nust be surrendered; that was consistent with naritinme practice.

15. M. BURMAN (United States of America) said he could not agree with the
poi nts made by the representative of Australia. It was very inportant to keep
t he provisions of the Mbdel Law consistent with existing maritime practice, and
paragraph 3 (b) had been crafted after |engthy deliberations. The nost that
could be done in bill-of-lading practice was to rely on the statenents in the
docunentation; it was not possible to reassess the rights and obligations that
derived fromthem It had to be assuned that the parties were aware of the
docunentati on they received. The possibility of the existence of duplicate
bills of lading was faced by every issuer and every person who honoured a bil
of lading; if there was a discrepancy, nothing in article "x" prevented action
bei ng taken agai nst the issuer.

16. M. MASUD (Qbserver for Pakistan) said that the use of the word "effect” in
the first line of paragraph 3 neant that the right or obligation had al ready
been transferred. That being so, it was not clear how that right or obligation
coul d subsequently be effected by a paper docunent, or how any contradiction
between the two actions would be resolved. The |ast sentence of the paragraph
al so highlighted that contradiction

17. Paragraph 3 (b) referred only to the carrier and the consi gnee, but nmade no
mention of the shipper and gave no indication of how di sputes between the

shi pper and the carrier woul d be resolved. The use of the word "acquired" in
paragraph 3 (a) was inconsistent with paragraph 4, in which the word "granted"
had been used; it would be better to use the verb "acquire" in both cases.

18. M. FALVEY (Observer for the International Association of Ports and
Harbors), referring to the concerns expressed by the observer for Canada, said
that article "x" dealt with actions in pursuance of a contract for the carriage
of goods. It was therefore unlikely that it would apply to a transaction
subsequent to the conpletion of such a contract, since the key action for

conpl etion of such contract was the delivery of the goods to the persons
entitled to receive them Paragraph 3 (a) was designed to provide protection
both to the person subject to the obligation to deliver and to the holder of a
right acquired by neans of a data nessage indicating that the goods woul d be
delivered to the person who was entitled to receive them It was not possible
to have both a data nessage and a paper bill of |ading being presented as the
basis for delivery. The carrier would therefore rely on the data nessage unl ess
it had been agreed between the holder of a right acquired by neans of a data



A/ CN. 9/ SR 600
Engl i sh
Page 5

message and the carrier that data nessages were no longer valid for the purpose
of the delivery of goods. Even after the presentation of a properly substituted
paper bill of lading, a data nessage could be used to direct a carrier to
deliver to a different location than that specified in the bill of |ading.

19. M. PHUA (Singapore) said that it was made clear in paragraph 43 of the
report of the Working Group (A/CN 9/421) that the draft article was based on the
Rules for Electronic Bills of Lading of the Comté maritinme international (CM),
known as the CM Rules, and the BOLERO project. He asked the secretariat to
update the Conmi ssion on pilot projects carried out under the CM Rul es and the
BOLERO pr oj ect .

20. M. I1LLESCAS (Spain) said that his del egati on endorsed the point nmade by
the observer for the International Association of Ports and Harbors. |If a

consi gnee cl ai med goods on the basis of a paper docunent and anot her consi gnee
in the same port clained the sane goods on the basis of a data nessage, enornous
problems would arise. Hi s delegation therefore urged caution, particularly
since sonme national |aws required the use of paper-based bills of |ading.

21. He suggested that in paragraph 3 (a), the word "previously" should be added
before the words "ceased to be valid"; otherw se there would be a period during
whi ch goods were docunented both by a data nessage and by a paper bill of

| ading, and that situation nmust be avoi ded. He al so suggested that the words
"derived fromthe data nessage" should be added at the end of the |ast sentence
of paragraph 3 so as to avoid raising the question of rights and obligations
derived from docunents or data nessages other than the transport document

itself.

22. Lastly, in the Guide to Enactnent, Governnents shoul d be advised to bear in
mnd the possibility of converting paper-based docunents to el ectroni c nmessages.

23. M. BURMAN (United States of Anerica) said that the fact that neither the
CM Rul es nor the BOLERO project had yet achieved w despread application,
reflected uncertainty in the absence of national |aws which provided a | evel of
predictability and conmercial protection in the use of electronic nessages.
Both sets of rules were prem sed on existing maritinme practice, and the

Conmi ssi on woul d be unwi se to depart fromthem Paragraphs 3 and 4 ained to
facilitate the adoption of electronic bill-of-Iading practice.

24. Ms. BGSS (United States of America) said her delegation agreed that it
shoul d be nmade clear in the Guide to Enactnment that article "x" dealt only with
certain aspects of bill-of-lading practice and that there were other areas which
needed to be considered at the sanme tinme. The first requirenent to be net in
maki ng an effective conversion from paper to el ectronic docunents was the
cancel l ation or surrender of outstanding bills of |ading, and that was part of
maritime practice: a newbill of |ading was not issued until the prior bill was
returned.

25. As to the Spanish proposal regarding paragraph 3 (a), her del egati on woul d
prefer to include an explanation in the Quide to Enactnment. In any case the
situation was covered: if the use of data nessages ceased to be valid, and a
new data nmessage was subsequently used, it would be invalid under



A/ CN. 9/ SR 600
Engl i sh
Page 6

paragraph 3 (b). There was no need to nake provision for the period after the
i ssuance of the paper docunent. Mboreover, the statenent in paragraph 3 (b) was
bei ng made by the issuer, and was therefore binding on him

26. M. Wn-Kyong KIM (Cbserver for the Republic of Korea) said that if there
were situations in actual practice in which paper documents were converted to
dat a messages, they should be covered in the Mddel Law. The inpact on nationa
| egi slati on would not be the sane if such situations were nerely referred to in
the Cuide to Enactnent.

27. The words "rule of law' in paragraph 3 should be changed to "law', as
al ready agreed and in line with paragraph 4.

The neeting was suspended at 4.35 p.m and resuned at 5.20 p. m

Draft Guide to Enactnment of the UNCI TRAL Mbdel lLaw on Legal Aspects of
Electronic Data Interchange (ED) and Rel ated Means of Comruni cation
(A CN. 9/ 426)

28. M. BGSS (United States of America), referring to the heading of chapter |
section C, said that its wording appeared to invite the inposition of a

regul atory framework onto a Mbdel Law the essence of which was to give a certain
degree of flexibility to the parties engaged in electronic commerce. She
suggested that the words "to be suppl enented by technical regul ations" should be
deleted. 1In addition, the second sentence of paragraph 28 of the Guide should
per haps be slightly nodified.

29. M. ABASCAL (Mexico) suggested that, although the enactnent of the Mde
Law as a single instrument would be recommended to States, the CGuide should
indicate that it was possible for themto incorporate the nodel rules into
national legislation as a series of separate provisions.

30. M. SORIEUL (International Trade Law Branch) recalled that that issue was
di scussed in paragraphs 19 and 20. It might also be desirable to include a few
words on the subject in chapter I, section B, of the CGuide, which dealt with the
scope of the Model Law.

31. M. ABASCAL (Mexico), referring to paragraph 34 of the Cuide, proposed that
the |l ast sentence should be deleted. The Mdel Law should cover both
definitions of "systemrul es" as defined in the paragraph

32. M. BGSS (United States of America) supported the proposal of the
representative of Mexico. Wth regard to the matter discussed in paragraphs 19
and 20, she said that sonme readers could be confused by reading the section
entitled "H story and background of the Mdel Law' (paras. 1-21) before they
read the rest of the docunment. It would be better to begin the Guide with a
brief summary and to include the "History and background” section in an annex.

33. M. MADRID (Spain) and M. PHUA (Singapore) agreed that the Guide would be
nore readily understandable by legislators if it began with a brief executive
summary stating clearly and conci sely the purpose of the Mdel Law and the
content of the Guide.



A/ CN. 9/ SR 600
Engl i sh
Page 7

34. M. GJREYEVA (Russian Federation), referring to the remarks of the
representative of the United States of America regardi ng paragraphs 28 and 29,
wonder ed why enphasis was placed on the technical aspects of the Mdel Law. She
al so wondered what provisions would be made so that in the future the text of

t he Model Law as a whol e could be changed as appropriate.

35. M. BURMAN (United States of Anerica) said that the Conm ssion could
undertake a re-exam nation of the text at any time in order to bring it up to
dat e.

36 M. SORIEUL (International Trade Law Branch) agreed with the suggestion
that the "Hi story and background" section should be placed in an annex to the
Quide. He agreed that periodic reviews of the Mddel Law would be desirable
because of the particular nature of the subject matter and the rapid technica
changes that could be expected; for that sane reason it would al so be useful for
the current text to be described as the "1996 version" of the Mdel Law.

37. M. PHUA (Singapore), referring to paragraph 39 of the Guide, said that the
wor di ng of the second sentence should be clarified, since it m ght be thought to
extend the coverage of the Mddel Law to paper-based docunents.

38. The CHAIRMAN said that the appropriate drafting changes woul d be made.

The neeting rose at 6 p. m




